

3745-21-04

Compliance time schedules.

[Comment: For dates and availability of non-regulatory government publications, publications of recognized organizations and associations, federal rules, and federal statutory provisions referenced in this rule, see paragraph (JJ) of rule 3745-21-01 of the Administrative Code titled "~~Reference to~~referenced materials."]

(A) ~~Reserved.~~

(B) Certification and permit application requirements.

(1) Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (B)(2), ~~(B)(3)~~, (B)(4), and (B)(7) of this rule, by no later than December 1, 1979 for any air contaminant source subject to paragraphs (C) to (S) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, by no later than April 1, 1981 for any air contaminant source subject to paragraphs (T) to (AA) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, by no later than June 1, 1986 for any air contaminant source subject to paragraphs (BB) to (EE) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, by no later than June 1, 1988 for any air contaminant source subject to paragraphs (FF) to (PP) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, and by no later than May 1, 1993 for any air contaminant source subject to paragraphs (QQ) to (DDD) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, any owner or operator of said air contaminant ~~source(s)~~source shall ~~either~~comply with one of the following:

(a) Certify in writing to the director that such source is in compliance with all requirements of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code. Such certification shall include: equipment description, Ohio ~~environmental protection agency~~EPA permit application number (if assigned), and all necessary data (consistent with the appropriate permit application appendices or emission activity category forms) and calculations which confirm the compliance status. The certification shall also include an application for a permit authorizing operation of such source in accordance with rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code if such source does not possess an effective permit, or, if applicable;

(b) Submit an application for an operating permit or an application for a modification to an operating permit in accordance with Chapter 3745-77 of the Administrative Code, for sources subject to the Title V program, or in accordance with Chapter 3745-31 of the Administrative Code, for sources not subject to the Title V program. Such application shall include a compliance program which will bring the source into compliance with ~~all the requirements of~~ rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code as expeditiously as practicable but in no event later than the dates specified in paragraph (C) of this rule, and shall identify all reasonable interim control measures.

[Comment: Applications requiring submittal prior to June 30, 2008, for sources not subject to the Title V program, were to be submitted in accordance with Chapter 3745-35 of the Administrative Code.]

- (2) The certification ~~and/or~~ operating permit application required by paragraph (B)(1) of this rule shall not apply to any air contaminant sources subject exclusively to paragraph (N) or (V) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code (pertaining to cutback asphalts and gasoline tank trucks).
- (3) For any air contaminant source subject to the following:
 - (a) Paragraphs (C)(3)(c), (C)(4)(b), (C)(5)(b), (C)(6)(b), (C)(8)(b), (C)(8)(c), (C)(9)(b), (C)(10)(b), (C)(19)(b) to ~~(C)(19)(d)~~, (C)(19)(d), (C)(28)(b), (C)(28)(c), (C)(65), and (C)(66) of this rule, a certification ~~and/or~~ operating permit application shall be submitted in accordance with paragraphs (B)(1)(a) and (B)(1)(b) of this rule by no later than May 1, 1993.
 - (b) Paragraphs (C)(5)(d), (C)(8)(e), and (C)(10)(d) of this rule, a certification ~~and/or~~ operating permit application shall be submitted in accordance with paragraphs (B)(1)(a) and (B)(1)(b) of this rule by no later than July 31, 2009.
- (4) For any air contaminant source subject to paragraphs (C)(3)(d) and (C)(28)(d) of this rule, a certification ~~and/or~~ operating permit application shall be submitted in accordance with paragraphs (B)(1)(a) and (B)(1)(b) of this rule by no later than March 1, 1995.
- (5) In demonstrating compliance pursuant to paragraph (B)(1)(a) of this rule, the owner or operator of a source ~~must~~shall utilize the test methods and procedures specified in rule 3745-21-10 of the Administrative Code. In addition, for any source that is located within one of the counties specified in paragraph (A) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, employs add-on controls to comply with ~~the requirements of~~ rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, and has not been tested since January 1, 1991, the owner or operator of such source shall conduct emission tests in accordance with the methods specified in rule 3745-21-10 of the Administrative Code to demonstrate compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code. The emission tests shall be conducted by January 17, 1996. For the purpose of complying with the emission test requirement specified in this paragraph, the Ohio ~~environmental protection agency~~EPA may accept an emission test conducted prior to January 1, 1991, if the owner or operator provides information and data to the Ohio ~~environmental~~

~~protection agency~~EPA which demonstrate that the test was witnessed by the Ohio ~~environmental protection agency~~EPA or its delegated agent, that an approved USEPA emission test method was employed, and that the operation of the source was consistent with the current source operating conditions and operating capacity. For each coating employed in any coating line that is located within one of the counties specified in paragraph (A) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, the owner or operator shall demonstrate compliance with any applicable VOC content limitation specified in rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code using USEPA method 24 (for coatings) or USEPA method 24A (for flexographic and rotogravure printing inks and related coatings). If any such coating has not been analyzed using USEPA method 24 or USEPA method 24A since January 1, 1991, the owner or operator shall either conduct a USEPA method 24 or USEPA method 24A analysis of the coating or obtain a USEPA method 24 or USEPA method 24A analysis of the coating from the coating supplier by January 17, 1996. If, pursuant to section 11.4 of USEPA method 24, as contained in 40 CFR ~~Part~~part 60 ~~Appendix~~appendix A, an owner or operator determines that USEPA method 24 or USEPA method 24A cannot be used for a particular coating or ink, the owner or operator shall so notify the administrator of the USEPA and shall use formulation data for that coating or ink to demonstrate compliance until the USEPA provides alternative analytical procedures or alternative precision statements for USEPA method 24 or USEPA method 24A.

- (6) The owner or operator of a source that is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall notify the director in writing at least thirty days before any impending change in the method of complying with said requirements.
- (7) For any air contaminant source subject to paragraph (C)(28)(e) of this rule a compliance certification or compliance program, along with an operating permit application, if appropriate, shall be submitted in accordance with paragraphs (B)(1)(a) and (B)(1)(b) of this rule by no later than ~~two months after the effective date of this rule~~August 15, 1999. For any air contaminant source subject to paragraph (C)(28)(e) of this rule and located at a facility subject to Chapter 3745-77 of the Administrative Code, the owner or operator shall only submit a compliance certification or a compliance program, but no operating permit application, in accordance with paragraphs (B)(1)(a) and (B)(1)(b) of this rule by no later than August 15, 1999.

(C) Compliance time schedules.

- (1) No owner or operator may cause, permit, or allow the operation or other use of

any air contaminant source in violation of the limitations specified in rule 3745-21-07 or 3745-21-08 of the Administrative Code beyond April 15, 1977.

(2) Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (C)(21) to (C)(26) and (C)(35) of this rule, any owner or operator of an automobile or light-duty truck assembly plant which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (C) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 1, 1982.

(3) Can coating lines.

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (C)(3)(b), (C)(3)(c), and (C)(3)(d) of this rule, any owner or operator of a can coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (D) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1982.

(b) ~~(Reserved)~~[Reserved.]

(c) Any owner or operator of a can coating line which employs a control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (D) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of solids by April 1, 1995.

(d) Any owner or operator of an end sealing compound coating line used for food can ends shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraphs (D)(1)(e) and (D)(2)(e) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code no later than January 17, 1996. Any owner or operator of a two-piece or three-piece can coating operation which has an end sealing compound coating line and which is subject to the alternative daily emission limitation of paragraph (D)(3) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirement of~~ paragraph (D) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code no later than January 17, 1996.

(4) Coil coating lines.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (C)(4)(b) and (C)(20) of this rule, any owner or operator of a coil coating line which is subject to ~~the~~

~~requirements of~~ paragraph (E) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1982.

- (b) Any owner or operator of a coil coating line which employs a control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (E) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of solids by April 1, 1995.

(5) Paper coating lines.

- (a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (C)(5)(b) of this rule, any owner or operator of a paper coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (F) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1982.
- (b) Any owner or operator of a paper coating line which employs a control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (F) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of solids by April 1, 1995.
- (c) Any owner or operator of a paper coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (F)(2) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by no later than April 2, 2010.
- (d) Any owner or operator of a paper coating line which employs an add-on control system shall achieve compliance with the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(7) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by no later than April 2, 2010.

(6) Fabric coating lines.

- (a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (C)(6)(b) of this rule, any owner or operator of a fabric coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (G) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1982.
- (b) Any owner or operator of a fabric coating line which employs control

system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (G) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of solids by April 1, 1995.

(7) Any owner or operator of a vinyl coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (H) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1982.

(8) Metal furniture coating lines.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (C)(8)(b) and (C)(8)(c) of this rule, any owner or operator of a metal furniture coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (I) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1982.

(b) Any owner or operator of a metal furniture coating line which employs a control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (I) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of solids by April 1, 1995.

(c) Any owner or operator of a metal furniture coating line which, prior to March 31, 1993, was exempt from ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (I) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, but is no longer exempt due to the change in the exemption criterion specified in paragraph (I)(3)(a) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (I) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by April 1, 1995.

(d) Any owner or operator of a metal furniture coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (I)(4) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by no later than April 2, 2010.

(e) Any owner or operator of a metal furniture coating line which employs an add-on control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(7) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation specified in the table of

paragraph (I)(4) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of deposited solids by no later than April 2, 2010.

(9) Magnet wire coating lines.

- (a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (C)(9)(b) of this rule, any owner or operator of a magnet wire coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (J) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by November 1, 1981.
- (b) Any owner or operator of a magnet wire coating line which employs a control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (J) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of solids by April 1, 1995.

(10) Large appliance coating lines.

- (a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (C)(10)(b) of this rule, any owner or operator of a large appliance coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (K) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1982.
- (b) Any owner or operator of a large appliance coating line which employs a control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (K) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of solids by April 1, 1995.
- (c) Any owner or operator of a large appliance coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (K)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by no later than April 2, 2010.
- (d) Any owner or operator of a large appliance coating line which employs a

control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(7) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (K)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of deposited solids by no later than April 2, 2010.

- (11) Any owner or operator of a fixed roof tank which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (L) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by January 1, 1982.
- (12) Any owner or operator of a refinery vacuum producing system which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (M)(1) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1982.
- (13) Any owner or operator of a refinery wastewater separator which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (M)(2) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by January 1, 1981.
- (14) Any owner or operator of a refinery process unit turnaround which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (M)(3) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1982.
- (15) ~~The requirements of paragraph~~Paragraph (N) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall be complied with by the following deadlines:
 - (a) April 15, 1981 for the use or application of cutback asphalts in road construction and maintenance; and
 - (b) April 15, 1982 for the use or application of emulsified asphalts in road construction and maintenance.
- (16) Solvent metal cleaning operations.
 - (a) Except as provided in paragraphs (C)(16)(b) to (C)(16)(d) of this rule, any owner or operator of a solvent metal cleaning operation which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (O) of rule 3745-21-09 of Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1981.

- (b) Any owner or operator of a solvent metal cleaning operation shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraphs (O)(2)(d), (O)(3)(d), and (O)(4)(e) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by July 17, 1995.
- (c) Any owner or operator of a cold cleaning operation which is located in Butler, Clark, Clermont, Greene, Hamilton, Miami, Montgomery, or Warren county shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (O)(2)(e) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 1, 2006.
- (d) Any owner or operator of a cold cleaning operation which is located in Ashtabula, Cuyahoga, Geauga, Lake, Lorain, Medina, Portage, or Summit county shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (O)(2)(e) of the Administrative Code by no later than April 2, 2010.
- (17) Any owner or operator of a bulk gasoline plant which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (P) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by July 1, 1981.
- (18) Any owner or operator of a bulk gasoline terminal which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (Q) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by July 1, 1981.
- (19) Any owner or operator of a gasoline dispensing facility which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (R) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements no later than the deadlines in the following schedules:
 - (a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (C)(19)(b) to (C)(19)(d) of this rule, for any gasoline dispensing facility which has an annual throughput equal to or greater than two hundred forty thousand gallons of gasoline by July 1, 1981.
 - (b) For any gasoline dispensing facility which is located in Ashtabula, Clark, Geauga, or Miami county: and for which construction commenced after November 15, 1990 and prior to March 31, 1993 by September 30, 1993.
 - (c) For any gasoline dispensing facility which is located in Ashtabula, Clark, Geauga, or Miami county and which dispenses at least one hundred

thousand gallons of gasoline per month (based upon the average monthly sales of gasoline during the period from November 16, 1990 through November 15, 1992): by March 31, 1994.

- (d) For any other gasoline dispensing facility which is located in Ashtabula, Clark, Geauga, or Miami county and which is not covered by paragraph (C)(19)(b) or (C)(19)(c) of this rule, or for any gasoline dispensing facility which is located in Delaware or Licking county and which has an annual throughput equal to or greater than one hundred twenty thousand gallons of gasoline, or for any gasoline dispensing facility which is located in Butler, Clermont, Cuyahoga, Franklin, Greene, Hamilton, Lake, Lorain, Lucas, Mahoning, Medina, Montgomery, Portage, Stark, Summit, Trumbull, Warren, or Wood county and which has an annual throughput equal to or greater than one hundred twenty thousand gallons of gasoline and less than two hundred forty thousand gallons of gasoline by March 31, 1995.
- (20) "Alside, Inc.", facility ID 1677000053, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "Alside, Inc." facility located at 3773 ~~Akron State~~ road, ~~North Hampton township~~ Cuyahoga Falls, Summit county, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (E) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by July 1, 1979, and paragraph (S) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by July 1, 1981.
- (21) "~~General Motors Corporation~~General Motors LLC - Lordstown Complex", facility ID 0278000199, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~General Motors Corporation~~General Motors LLC - Lordstown Complex" automobile assembly plant located at 2200 Hallock Young road, Lordstown, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (C)(1)(a)(i) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1982; and paragraphs (C)(1)(a)(ii), (C)(1)(c) and (C)(1)(d) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1985.
- (22) "~~General Motors Corporation~~General Motors LLC - Lordstown Complex", facility ID 0278000199, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~General Motors Corporation~~General Motors LLC - Lordstown Complex" light-duty truck assembly plant located at 2200 Hallock Young road, Lordstown, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (C)(1)(a)(i) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1982; and paragraphs (C)(1)(a)(ii), (C)(1)(c) and (C)(1)(d) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1984.
- (23) "~~General Motors Corporation~~" or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~General Motors Corporation~~" automobile assembly plant located at 4726

~~Smith road, Norwood, Ohio shall achieve compliance with the requirements of paragraphs (C)(1)(a)(i) and (C)(1)(e) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1981; and paragraphs (C)(1)(a)(ii) and (C)(1)(d) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1982.~~[Reserved.]

- (24) ~~"Ford Motor Company" or any subsequent owner or operator of the "Ford Motor Company" automobile and light duty truck assembly plant located at 5401 Baumhart road, Lorain, Ohio shall achieve compliance with the requirements of paragraph (C)(1)(a)(i) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1982; and paragraphs (C)(1)(a)(ii), (C)(1)(b), (C)(1)(e) and (C)(1)(d) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1986.~~[Reserved.]
- (25) "Ford Motor Company - Ohio Assembly Plant", facility ID 0247030471, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "Ford Motor Company - Ohio Assembly Plant" light-duty truck assembly plant located at 650 Miller and Walker roads~~road~~, Avon Lake, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements~~ of paragraph (C)(1)(a)(i) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1982; and paragraphs (C)(1)(a)(ii), (C)(1)(c) and (C)(1)(d) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1986.
- (26) ~~"American Motors Jeep Corporation" or any subsequent owner or operator of the "American Motors Jeep Corporation" automobile assembly plant located at 940 North Cove Boulevard, Toledo, Ohio shall achieve compliance with the requirements of paragraphs (C)(1)(a) and (C)(1)(d) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1982; and paragraph (C)(1)(e) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1986.~~[Reserved.]
- (27) Any owner or operator of petroleum refinery equipment which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (T) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall submit to the director a monitoring program by July 1, 1981, and the first quarterly monitoring report by October 15, 1981.
- (28) Miscellaneous metal part or product coating lines.
- (a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (C)(28)(b), ~~(C)(28)(e), and to~~ (C)(28)(d) of this rule, any owner or operator of a miscellaneous metal part or product coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (U) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1982.

- (b) Any owner or operator of a miscellaneous metal part or product coating line which employs a control system shall achieve compliance with either the control requirements specified in paragraph (B)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or the applicable VOC limitation which is contained in paragraph (U) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code and expressed in terms of pounds of VOC per gallon of solids by April 1, 1995.
- (c) Any owner or operator of a miscellaneous metal part or product coating line which is subject to ~~the revised requirements of~~ paragraph (U)(1)(e) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, pertaining to the interior coating of a steel pail or drum, shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1995.
- (d) Any owner or operator of a miscellaneous metal part or product coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (U)(2)(e)(i) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code or which was, prior to January 17, 1995, subject to the 4.8 pounds VOC per gallon of coating limitation for anticorrosion coatings contained in rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code, shall achieve compliance by January 17, 1996.
- (e) Any owner or operator of a miscellaneous metal part or product coating line which is located in Ashtabula, Butler, Clermont, Cuyahoga, Geauga, Hamilton, Lake, Lorain, Medina, Portage, Summit, or Warren county and which was, prior to ~~the effective date of this rule~~ June 15, 1999, subject to the ten gallons per day exemption contained under paragraph (U)(2)(e) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements under~~ paragraph (U)(1) or (U)(2)(e)(ii) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by June 15, 2000.
- (29) Any owner or operator of a gasoline tank truck which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (V) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by March 31, 1983.
- (30) Any owner or operator of a synthesized pharmaceutical manufacturing facility which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (W) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1982.
- (31) Any owner or operator of a pneumatic rubber tire manufacturing facility which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (X) of rule 3745-21-09 of the

Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1982.

- (32) Any owner or operator of a packaging rotogravure printing line, publication rotogravure printing line, or flexographic printing line which is subject to the following:
- (a) ~~The requirements of paragraph~~Paragraph (Y)(1) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1982.
 - (b) ~~The requirements of paragraph~~Paragraph (Y)(3) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by no later than April 2, 2010.
- (33) Any owner or operator of an external floating roof tank which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (Z) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1982.
- (34) ~~(Reserved)~~[Reserved.]
- (35) "Honda of America Mfg., Inc. Marysville Auto Plant," facility ID 0180010193, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "Honda of America Mfg., Inc. Marysville Auto Plant" automobile assembly plant located at 24000 Honda Parkway (U.S. route 33), Marysville, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraphs (C)(1)(c) and (C)(1)(d) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1986.
- (36) Any owner or operator of a petroleum dry cleaning facility which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (BB) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1987.
- (37) Any owner or operator of a continuous, polystyrene resin manufacturing process which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (CC) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1987.
- (38) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (C)(66) of this rule, any owner or operator of a process unit which produces organic chemicals and which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (DD) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with paragraph (DD)(2) of

rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by February 1, 1987, and paragraphs (DD)(3) to (DD)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by July 1, 1987.

- (39) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (C)(66) of this rule, any owner or operator of an air oxidation process which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (EE) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements by December 31, 1987.
- (40) "~~The Steelcraft Manufacturing Company~~", facility ID 1431050879, or any subsequent owner or operator of "~~The Steelcraft Manufacturing Company~~" facility located at 9017 Blue Ash road, Cincinnati, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (FF)(1) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by April 1, 1989, and paragraph (FF)(2) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by April 1, 1989.
- (41) "~~Chevron U.S.A., Inc.~~" or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~Chevron U.S.A., Inc.~~" barge loading facility located at state route 128 and U.S. route 50 in Hamilton county, Ohio shall achieve compliance with the requirements of paragraph (GG) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by August 15, 1989. [Reserved.]
- (42) Any owner or operator of an automotive/transportation plastic parts coating line or a business machine plastic parts coating line which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (HH) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements no later than August 25, 2009.
- (43) "~~International Paper Company~~" or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~International Paper Company~~" facility located at 100 Progress place, Springdale, Ohio shall achieve compliance with the requirements of paragraph (II) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by March 31, 1993. [Reserved.]
- (44) "~~The Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company~~OMNOVA Solutions Inc.", facility ID 1677010195, or any subsequent owner or operator of "~~The Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company~~OMNOVA Solutions Inc." facility located at 13761380 Tech Way drive, Akron, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (JJ) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 25, 1988.
- (45) "~~Morton Thiokol, Inc.~~PMC Cincinnati, Inc.", facility ID 1431380075, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~Morton Thiokol, Inc.~~PMC Cincinnati,

Inc." facility located at 2000 West street, Cincinnati, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements~~ of paragraph (KK) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 25, 1988.

- (46) "The Lubrizol Corporation", facility ID 0243000024, or any subsequent owner or operator of "The Lubrizol Corporation" facility located at 155 Freedom road, Painesville, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements~~ of paragraph (LL) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by October 1, 1989.
- (47) "PPG Industries, Inc. - Cleveland", facility ID 1318000101, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "PPG Industries, Inc. - Cleveland" facility located at 3800 West 143rd street, Cleveland, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements~~ of paragraph (MM) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 25, 1988.
- (48) "Von Roll Isola USA, Inc.", facility ID 1318002663, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "Von Roll Isola USA, Inc." facility located at 4853 West 130th street, Cleveland, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements~~ of paragraph (NN) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code no later than the deadlines in the following schedule:
- (a) For machine 30, by June 1, 1989.
- (b) For any machine other than machine 30, by December 31, 1989.
- (49) "~~Armeo Steel Company, L.P.~~AK Steel Corporation", facility ID 1409010006" or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~Armeo Steel Company, L.P.~~AK Steel Corporation" facility located at 1801 Crawford street, Middletown, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements~~ of paragraph (OO) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by March 31, 1993.
- (50) "Formica Corporation - Evandale", facility ID 1431150801, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "Formica Corporation - Evandale" facility located at 10155 Reading road, Cincinnati, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements~~ of paragraph (PP) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 25, 1988.
- (51) "~~DayColor Corp.~~Day-Glo Color Corp." , facility ID 1318006552, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~DayColor Corp.~~Day-Glo Color Corp." facility located at 4515 St. Clair avenue, Cleveland, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements~~ of paragraph (QQ) of rule 3745-21-09 of

the Administrative Code by May 1, 1994.

- (52) ~~(Reserved)~~[Reserved.]
- (53) "Ritrama Duramark", facility ID 1318007355, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "Ritrama Duramark" facility located at 341 Eddy Road, Cleveland, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (SS) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by March 31, 1993.
- (54) ~~"ICI Americas Incorporated" or any subsequent owner or operator of the "ICI Americas Incorporated" facility located at 3647 Shepard road, Perry, Ohio shall achieve compliance with the requirements of paragraph (TT)(1) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 1, 1994, and paragraph (TT)(2) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by March 31, 1993.~~[Reserved.]
- (55) ~~"British Petroleum Oil Company, Toledo Refinery"~~BP-Husky Refining LLC, facility ID 0448020007, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~British Petroleum Oil Company, Toledo Refinery~~BP-Husky Refining LLC" facility located at 4001 Cedar Point road, Oregon, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (UU)(1) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 1, 1995, paragraphs (UU)(2) and (UU)(3) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 1, 1993, paragraph (UU)(4) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 1, 1994, paragraph (UU)(5) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by October 1, 1993, and paragraph (UU)(6) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by January 1, 1995.
- (56) ~~"Ashland Petroleum Company"~~Marathon Petroleum Company LP - Canton Refinery ~~or, facility ID 1576002006~~, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~Ashland Petroleum Company~~Marathon Petroleum Company LP - Canton Refinery" facility located at 2408 Gambrinus road, S.W., Canton, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (VV) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by March 31, 1993.
- (57) ~~(Reserved)~~[Reserved.]
- (58) ~~"Columbus Coated Fabrics" or any subsequent owner or operator of "Columbus Coated Fabrics" facility located at 1280 North Grant avenue, Columbus, Ohio shall achieve compliance with the requirements of paragraph (XX) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 31, 1995.~~[Reserved.]

- (59) "PMC Specialties Group", facility ID 1431390137, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "PMC Specialties Group" facility located at 501 Murray road, Cincinnati, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (YY)(1) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by March 31, 1993, and paragraph (YY)(2) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 1, 1994.
- (60) ~~"Firestone Synthetic Rubber & Latex Company"~~Firestone Polymers", facility ID 1677010000, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~Firestone Synthetic Rubber & Latex Company~~Firestone Polymers" facility located at 381 West Wilbeth road, Akron, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (ZZ) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by May 1, 1994.
- (61) ~~(Reserved)~~[Reserved.]
- (62) ~~"BF Goodrich Company, Akron Chemical Plant"~~Emerald Performance Materials, LLC", facility ID 1677010029, or any subsequent owner or operator of the "~~BF Goodrich Company, Akron Chemical Plant~~Emerald Performance Materials, LLC" facility located at 240 West Emerling avenue, Akron, Ohio shall achieve compliance with ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (BBB)(1) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by August 15, 1993, and paragraphs (BBB)(2) to (BBB)(4) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code by December 15, 1994.
- (63) ~~(Reserved)~~[Reserved.]
- (64) Any owner or operator of a gasoline dispensing facility which is subject to ~~the requirements of~~ paragraph (DDD) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code shall achieve compliance with said requirements no later than the following deadlines in the following paragraphs:
- (a) For any gasoline dispensing facility not owned by an independent small business marketer:
- (i) For any gasoline dispensing facility for which construction commenced after November 15, 1990 and prior to March 31, 1993, by September, 1993;
- (ii) For any gasoline dispensing facility which dispenses at least one hundred thousand gallons of gasoline per month (based upon the average monthly sales of gasoline during the period from

November 16, 1990 through November 15, 1992), by March 31, 1994; ~~and,~~

- (iii) For any other gasoline dispensing facility not covered by paragraphs (C)(64)(a)(i) and (C)(64)(a)(ii) of this rule, by March 31, 1995.
- (b) For gasoline dispensing facilities owned by independent small business marketers:
- (i) For a minimum of thirty-three per cent of the gasoline dispensing facilities owned by each such marketer, by March 31, 1994.
 - (ii) For a minimum of sixty-six per cent of the gasoline dispensing facilities owned by such marketer, by March 31, 1995.
 - (iii) For one hundred per cent of the gasoline dispensing facilities owned by each such marketer, by March 31, 1996.
- (65) Any owner or operator of an air contaminant source which is located in Ashtabula, Clark, Delaware, Geauga, Licking, or Miami county and which, prior to March 31, 1993, was exempt from ~~the requirements of~~ paragraphs (C) to (M), (O) to (R), (T), (U), and (W) to (EE) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code because the facility's potential to emit is less than one hundred tons of VOC per calendar year, shall achieve compliance with said requirements by April 1, 1995.
- (66) ~~"Georgia Resins, Inc. Georgia Pacific Chemicals LLC",~~ facility ID 0125040904, or any subsequent owner or operator of the ~~"Georgia Resins, Inc. Georgia Pacific Chemicals LLC"~~ facility located at 1975 Watkins road, Columbus, Ohio shall achieve compliance with paragraphs (DD) and (EE) of rule 3745-21-09 of the Administrative Code for the process unit which produces urea-formaldehyde by May 1, 1994.

Effective:

Five Year Review (FYR) Dates: 07/13/2015

Certification

Date

Promulgated Under: 119.03
Statutory Authority: 3704.03(E)
Rule Amplifies: 3704.03(A), 3704.03(E)
Prior Effective Dates: 7/28/75, 10/19/79, 3/27/81, 6/21/82, 1/24/83, 5/9/86,
5/25/88, 8/22/90, 3/31/93, 1/17/95, 6/15/99, 11/5/02,
2/10/06, 8/25/08, 8/26/2011